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     --- Upon commencing at 9:30 a.m. 


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay, good morning to everyone who is 

present.  We are about to start the Technical Conference in

Portlands Reinforcement Pipeline Project, EB-2006-0305.  My name is Donna Campbell I am here on behalf of the Board, and I'm accompanied by Zora Crnojacki. 


MS. CRNOJACKI:  Crnojacki.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Good luck with that one.  Before we start, I just remind everybody that in order to use the microphone system properly in here, you must press the green button and wait for it to appear a brighter green.  That means that you are "on". 


If you want to have private conversations, you must make sure you have turned that off, because otherwise everybody will listen to your lunch plans.  


So with that in mind, I would just ask that those parties who are in the room identify themselves on the record.  


APPEARANCES: 

MR. STOLL:  Scott Stoll for the applicant, Enbridge.  


MR. ROWE:  Robert Rowe, also for Enbridge. 


MS. CAMPBELL:  You are going to have to speak up, I can tell you that right now.  


MR. RIOUX:  Jason Rioux, Portlands Energy Centre.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


MS. BUTCHER:  Nicolle Butcher, Ontario Power Generation. 


MS. CAMPBELL:  That was Nicolle Butcher, Ontario Power Generation.  And the other people who are here are witnesses brought on behalf of Enbridge and the Portlands Energy Centre? 


MR. STOLL:  That is correct.  So we will bring the witnesses up for their questions, and we may need to take a couple of breaks in between some of the questions, just to bring the witness panel up.  But other than that, we will have them introduce themselves at the time they're going to provide responses.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Now, in advance of this Technical Conference, the Board Staff provided a list of questions to Enbridge for the ‑‑ for use at the Technical Conference and, in advance, Enbridge has compiled a document that is fairly thick, that consists of a number of pages, and it will form an exhibit to this hearing so that anyone who is listening can follow along with the document when they do, in fact, get it.  


So the first thing I would like to do is make this an exhibit, and this is an exhibit to the Technical Conference.  We will call it J.1.  

EXHIBIT NO. J.1:  ENBRIDGE FILING 

MS. CAMPBELL:  What I propose to do is to march through the questions that have been posed by Board Staff in their written form, and then provide Enbridge the opportunity to provide the answer to that.


And I note for the record that there is no question 10 posed by Board Staff.  We skip from 9 to 11 because of the eccentricities of Windows, or something like that -- Word, rather.  

ENBRIDGE - PANEL 1

Ms. Edith Chin

All right.  So starting with the first question that is posed, and for this we are starting off with the gas delivery agreement and the question reference is Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5, which is the EGDI and Portlands Energy Centre LP gas delivery agreement, Rate 125, unbundled firm service.  That is just the title of the document.  


The question that was asked was to summarize and discuss the financial assurances required by EGDI from the customer regarding the risk associated with construction and operation of the proposed pipeline.  


MR. STOLL:  If you could, just give your name and position prior to answering.  


MS. CHIN:  Good morning.  My name is Edith Chin.  I am with Enbridge Gas Distribution.  I'm the manager of distributed energy.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  


MS. CHIN:  The response to question number 1, Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. has financial guarantees from Ontario Power Generation Inc. and to TransCanada Pipelines Limited.  


Ontario Power Generation and -- directly and TransCanada Pipelines indirectly each own a 50 percent limited partnership stake in Portlands Energy Centre.  


The combined guarantees are as follows:  From December 6th, 2006 until the date of receipt of the ‑‑ from Portlands Energy Centre of the total estimated contribution in aid of construction, which we call the CIAC payment date, the limit of the combined guarantees is $40 million Canadian. 


From the CIAC payment date to the date on which EGD notifies PEC that the unrecovered investment has fallen below an amount equal to 36 months of the contract value, the limit of the combined guarantees is $24 million Canadian.  And from the CIAC payment date ‑‑ sorry, from the minimum amount date to the end of the contract, the limit of combined guarantees is 9,400,000 Canadian.  


Enbridge Gas Distribution is entitled to make demand upon the guarantors upon the occurrence of an event of default as defined in the contract, or upon a default in payment.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Moving to question 2, which references the same document - that is, Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5, the gas delivery agreement, the question was:

“In addition to the gas delivery agreement included in the prefiled evidence, is there any other contract between EGDI and the customer regarding the proposed pipeline project?”


MS. CHIN:  No, there is currently no other contract between Enbridge Gas Distribution and the customer, other than the gas delivery agreement as filed.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  When you answered that question, you said currently there is no contract.  Do you anticipate at any point in time there will be one?  


MS. CHIN:  I do not anticipate there will be one with respect to gas distribution.  If Portlands Energy Centre would like to enter a contract with respect to other services, such as storage services, there will be another agreement.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  The next question, which is question 3, references Appendix C to the gas delivery agreement.  I apologize.  My ‑‑ I skipped forward.  I should have given the fact that it is Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5, Appendix C.  What I am specifically looking at is page 49 of 58, Appendix C.  That's where Appendix C starts and it is titled "Financial Assurances and Insurance."


What we had wanted concerning this is perhaps more of an explanation in plain English, shall we say, of what the financial assurances are.  


We can certainly ‑‑ obviously it is there to be read, but what we wanted from you was more or less a précis of the financial assurances that are in place and how they work. 


MS. CHIN:  The financial assurances are in the form of guarantees from the parent of Portlands Energy Centre.  So they are guarantees from Ontario Power Generation and TransCanada Pipelines.  


With respect to how they work, in response to question number 1, we have tabled the limits of the guarantees we can draw from, and should there be an event of default and if there is a need to call on the parents, we have the guarantees.  So that upon demand of payments, the guarantors would be paying.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  In relation to default, am I correct ‑- perhaps, Mr. Stoll, you're the best one to answer this.  Am I correct that the events of default and all of the remedies are found within section 15.1 -- sorry, article 15.1 of the contract?  I will let you get to that.  That is page 21 of 58, in schedule 5.  15.1 defines events about default.  15.2 defines remedies upon event of default.  


Am I correct that this is the sum total of the events of default and remedies, and that when I combine that with the response to the first question, which gives me the limit of the assurances, I have the whole package, so to speak?  


MR. STOLL:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Sorry.  I was going to say if what you would prefer to do is give an undertaking, and if that is not the sum total and there is something else I should know about, or rather the Board should know about, you will let me know?  


MR. STOLL:  I can do that.  The only qualification I had was the opening words of 15.1 are in addition to any other events.  That was my only concern, whether there was any other reference in the contract that would be considered in the event of default, and whether that was really material for the Board's concerns.  I can take that back and provide an answer.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  Perhaps what we will do is label that as an undertaking.  I will make it K.1, and it is to advise of the events of default which will trigger the remedies contained in article 15.2 of Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5, which is the gas delivery agreement.  For clarity, article 15 starts at page 21 of the agreement.  

UNDERTAKING NO. K.1:  TO ADVISE OF EVENTS OF DEFAULT TRIGGERING REMEDIES CONTAINED IN ARTICLES 15.2 AND 15.3 OF GAS DELIVERY AGREEMENT 


MR. STOLL:  You just referenced 15.1 and 15.2.  With respect to 15.3 –


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  15.3 is suspension of company's obligations.  


MR. STOLL:  Right.


MS. CAMPBELL:  We will amend the undertaking to say “contained in 15.2 and 15.3,” so it reads: “to advise of the events of default which will trigger the remedies contained in articles 15.2 and 15.3 of the gas delivery agreement.”  


MR. STOLL:  That's fine.  Thank you.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  Moving on.  We are now at question 4, which keeps us within that gas delivery agreement, which is Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5.  This question relates to the EGDI ratepayers' protection.  In essence, if the customer's demand for services discontinues prior to the expiry of the gas delivery agreement, how will the ratepayers be protected?


MS. CHIN:  If the customer's demand for the proposed pipeline service is discontinued prior to the expiry of the gas delivery agreement, the contract may be terminated.   Upon termination, pursuant to article 16 of the contract, the customer is required to pay EGD the termination charge calculated in accordance with part 10 of appendix B.


If the customer fails to pay the termination charge in full when required to do so, EGDI may liquidate or exercise the financial assurances.  EGDI ratepayers will not be burdened with the unrecovered investments for this project.  Part 10 of appendix B specifics the methodology for the calculation of the termination charge.  Termination charge is comprised of, one, the unrecovered investment, which is the then current net present value as calculated using the Board's EBO 188 guidelines, plus any non-recoverable costs of expenses incurred by EGDI as a result of such determination.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Moving on to question 5, which remains with the gas delivery agreement, Exhibit A, tab 3, schedule 5.  We are going to page 39, paragraph (g) of that document.    Now, we reference paragraph G, but actually in order to understand the question - and I am sure that when you went to answer it you read the rest of it - you have to look at also paragraph F as helpful and to set up the question along with D.  So essentially what we have here is the estimated CIAC, which is the contribution in aid of construction.  


August 1st, 2007, there is a payment of 10 million.  September 1st, 2007, there is contracted to be a payment of 7.7 million.  And it is noted that these are estimates only, as no one can tell right now what the exact amount will need to be.


Paragraph F talks about the fact that within nine months of completion of the installation and commissioning of the above-noted distribution lines and related infrastructure the company will establish the final amount of the CIAC based on the actual costs incurred to complete such installation and commissioning and shall notify the customer of such final amount and any remaining amounts owing by the customer or the company, as the case may be, in order to balance the total CIAC payments made by the customer against the final CIAC.


Then in paragraph (g) is stated:

”Following completion of the installation and commissioning of the above-noted distribution line and related infrastructure, the company shall file a post- construction report with the OEB in connection with the company's leave-to-construct application to the OEB.  The company shall provide the customer with such additional details as are reasonably needed to review such post-construction report.”

Our question really is:  What is the role, if any, that the document in (g) plays in calculating the final CIAC?


MS. CHIN:  Can you repeat the last part of your question?  What role does the....  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Sorry for the delay.  The discussion that we're having right here is, the fact that - I am trying to figure out how to say this without confusing everybody - but usually the post-construction report does not contain a lot of detail.  It's a very -- pro forma is not the right word, but it is a succinct, short document.  And we are trying to link what, if any, relationship that report has to do with the calculations that are referred to in the prior part of that section of the contract.


MS. CHIN:  The reason to use actual costs is to ensure fairness and no cross-subsidization between Portlands Energy Centre and the other Enbridge ratepayers.  The actual costs that are going to be used for the final calculation of the CIAC will be contained in the post-construction report.    


MS. CAMPBELL:  Again, the reason for the discussion is that normally the post-construction reports don't contain that level of information.  


So we are wondering whether perhaps we could have this discussion with Mr. Stoll, but what we would like to see from Enbridge would be some ability to discuss with you, before you file that report, exactly what is going to be in it, because there is some concern that the reports are typically not that detailed, and in a project that is as significant as this one, we may well require some more detail than you would normally put in it.  


So perhaps we could have that discussion, Mr. Stoll.  


MR. STOLL:  We can have that discussion off line.  I think, I guess the level of detail, I think part of what the clause “to manage the relationship between Enbridge and the customer” is intended to do is to say there is a certain level of detail that we have to provide to the Board.  


The company has provided an obligation to provide some of the information behind that, if the customer requests, so that the customer can be satisfied in doing their due diligence with the actual costs of the project.  So that was the last sentence of that clause.  


So if you are looking at changing what would be in the post‑construction report, we ‑‑ I think we should have that discussion off line.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Changing in the sense of providing greater detail than normally appears.  You just made reference to the fact that you are willing to provide comfort to the customer ‑ and I understand that ‑ by giving additional information.  That may well be of assistance to the Board, also.  


MR. STOLL:  All right.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  So perhaps rather than having -- taking up time right now, perhaps during the break or something we could have a ‑‑ when we finish this, you and I could perhaps have a discussion and we can provide you with -- through a discussion, I think we could probably land on exactly what it is that would be helpful to us.  


But rather than take up the time right now, we will have that discussion after we finish marching through the rest of the questions and before we take our break. 


MR. STOLL:  That's fine.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  I would now like to move to the routing or routing, depending on what area of Canada you come from, and environmental matters.  That appears to be time for a change in panel.


MR. STOLL:  It does.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  


MR. STOLL:  So if ‑‑ 


MS. CHIN:  Thank you very much.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you for your help. 


MR. STOLL:  If Ms. Chin could step down and have the next set of witnesses, so it will just be a couple of minutes while people get organized and set up.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  


ENBRIDGE - PANEL 2:

Mr. Joe Muraca


Mr. Edwin Makkinga


Mr. David Wesenger


Mr. Erik Naczynski


Mr. Samuel McDermott


Mr. Walter Tkach


MR. STOLL:  All right.  We are basically starting the next round of questions, questions 6 through 9, in the Board questions.  


If I could just get each person on the panel to give their name, their position and their role in the project in a very brief fashion, and we will start with Mr. McDermott at the far end.  


MR. McDERMOTT:  Good morning, my name is Samuel McDermott.  I am the project manager, work for Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. and I am the project manager for the north section of this project.  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  My name is Eric Naczynski and I am a senior project leader with Enbridge Gas Distribution, and I am the project manager for the south section of the Toronto Portlands reinforcement project.  


MR. WESENGER:  My name is David Wesenger.  I am a senior project manager with STANTEC Consulting Limited.  I was responsible for preparing the environmental assessment for the south section of the Portlands pipeline.  


MR. MAKKINGA:  My name is Edwin Makkinga.  I am an environmental health and safety specialist with Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc., and I was responsible for coordinating the environmental sections for the south and the north section of the Portlands Energy Centre project. 


MR. MURACA:  Good morning.  My name is Joe Muraca, and I am an environmental planner with Dillon Consulting and I was responsible for preparing the update study that was completed for the north of the Portlands route.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  I guess we are on to question 6, and question 6 takes us to a different document.  It takes us to Exhibit B, tab 2, schedule 1, page 1, paragraph 1.  


It says in that first paragraph the construction will be ‑‑ of the proposed pipeline will be conducted in accordance with the EGDI contract specifications and the EGDI construction manual.  


There were two questions arising out of this and the first one was a request that the format, scope and date of these documents that were just referred to, which is the contract specs and the construction manual, be described.  


So if someone could describe the format and the scope of the manual and the contract specification.  


Mr. McDermott.  


MR. McDERMOTT:  The construction specifications document contains various elements included in the scope of work and incorporates construction specifications which reflect the best practices in the pipeline construction industry.


It will require the constructor to comply with all permits and environmental report recommendations.  The scope of work is developed for each project and is currently in progress for PEC.


MS. CAMPBELL:  In that answer you advised that it reflects the best practices in the pipeline construction industry.  Is this a document that is updated regularly?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  The construction specification is tailored more towards the general contract, so it is a one-time document.  It's being written as we speak.



MS. CAMPBELL:  But there is a reference to “incorporating construction specifications which reflect the best practices of the pipeline construction industry.”    That suggests to me that -- I could be wrong on this, but it suggests to me that best practices are evolving as knowledge is acquired over time.


Your answer to me, then, is that the construction practices that are incorporated in the documents are the subject of revision and reflect the best practices at the time it is entered into?  Or is it a static document? 


MR. McDERMOTT:  No.  It reflects the best at the time the document is written.



MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  The question concerning if you could provide me with the answer concerning the construction manual itself.  


MR. McDERMOTT:  The construction manual chronicles the elements relative to pipeline construction and incorporates construction specifications which reflect the best practices in the pipeline industry. 


It contains policies and procedures to ensure compliance with all legislated requirements.  The construction manual is updated on a continuous basis.



MS. CAMPBELL:  The construction manual, first of all, I take it it is a proprietary document. 


MR. McDERMOTT:  That's correct.



MS. CAMPBELL:  And am I correct in assuming that the construction manual exists separate and apart from the construction specifications?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  That is correct.



MS. CAMPBELL:  So the construction specifications are unique to the project that's being undertaken? 


MR. McDERMOTT:  That is correct.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  And the construction manual is, in essence, a constant that Enbridge has. 


MR. McDERMOTT:  That is correct.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  And you said is updated on a continuous basis?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  That is correct.



MS. CAMPBELL:  Now, the second part of the question that relates to these two documents is, how will these documents fit with the mitigation measures recommended in the environmental reports for both north and south section of this project?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  The Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. contract specifications indicate that the work shall be performed in strict compliance with the contract documents, which include the environmental assessments for the north and south section of the project.



MS. CAMPBELL:  Just a couple of questions concerning that answer.  The first one is, my memory is that there will be an environmental inspector on site throughout the construction project; is that correct?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  Yes.



MS. CAMPBELL:  And when we talk about the work being done in strict compliance with the contract documents, which include the environmental assessments, I am assuming that when you are looking at the environmental assessments, whatever is said in the environmental assessments and is recommended by STANTEC and Dillon has been incorporated and will be incorporated.  


MR. McDERMOTT:  That is correct.



MS. CAMPBELL:  And the environmental inspector, will it be the same individual throughout, or will you be rotating through individuals?  In other words, one assigned individual to be present throughout the projector a series of individuals?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  At this time we are in the process of writing the document and we haven't come to a decision as to how we are going to be doing that.  It may be two, or it may be one.  We haven't made that decision as yet.



MS. CAMPBELL:  When will that decision be made?  When will the environmental inspectors be in place, so to speak?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  I do not have a date for that, but we are hoping to complete the document by the end of April.



MS. CAMPBELL:  It is within the next four to five weeks, shall we say?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  I would say.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  That is what you are hoping for.  One never knows how these things turns out, but that is what you are hoping for.  


MR. McDERMOTT:  Yes.



MS. CAMPBELL:  Question 7.  We are moving into environmental and socio-economic assessment reports.    These questions arise out of the two different environmental assessments that were filed.  The first one by Dillon relates to the north end of the reinforcement project, and it is Exhibit B, tab 2, schedule 3, and it is dated November 2006.


The report by STANTEC is dated December 2006, and it is Exhibit B, tab 2, schedule 4.  And it relates to the south section.  The first question we asked concerning these reports was, we asked that a table be provided with all comments received in the OPCC review process and update any other comments received since the filing of the application, and we also asked you to file copies of these comments as an update of the prefiled evidence. 


What has been provided and forms part of Exhibit J.1 is a table that contains the comments.  


We were just provided with this table at the commencement of this, and what I would like to do is take an opportunity, if we could take about five minutes or so, and I would like to review the comments and see if I have any questions concerning those comments in case I would like something filled in or something.  Rather than waste the time of having me sit and read, can we just take, for example, let's say, a five-minute break right now, just a quick one.  No one needs to leave the room.  I just need to go off the record to read this quickly.    


If we can do that right now and be back on in a few minutes.  


MR. STOLL:  That is acceptable.



MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


--- Recess taken at 10:10 a.m.   



‑‑‑ Upon resuming at 10:21 a.m.


MS. CAMPBELL:  We have now had an opportunity to quickly review the materials that were provided in response to question 7.


It is not our intention to have the panel read into the record all of the answers that are contained in question A, as it is a fairly lengthy table of comments.


However, I do have a question that relates to the first one, which appears to be from a Mr. Arasanious.  I apologize to him for my slaughtering of his name.  But I do have a question concerning his e‑mails, and it is really a question of clarifying the dates.


For those who are following along later with hard copy, this is question 7.  It is attachment 1 to question 7, and there are a series of e‑mails that go back and forth between Mr. Tuck and Mr. Arasanious.


There are a fair number of them.  What I am trying to do, when I look at this, is just confirm the dates.  I see an exchange that starts with the first e‑mail, which is dated ‑‑ this would be page 9 of attachment 1 to question number 7.  This appears, to my mind, to be the initiating e‑mail.  It is September 9th, 2006 with a response going back from Mr. Makkinga at Dillon dated December 19th, 2006.


Then I see another letter from Mr. Tuck to Mr. Arasanious dated December 22nd, 2006 that is at page 7.  Then I see what appears to be a response from Mr. Arasanious.  He makes reference to forwarding an e‑mail, and if I look at the bottom of page 4, because I am flipping through this backwards, it appears to have arrived December 8th, 2006.


Then I see on page 3, Mr. Tuck to Mr. Arasanious dated December 27th, 2006.  Then on page 2 of 10, it is January 1st, 2007 from Mr. Arasanious.


Then a letter, the final thing ‑‑ the final document in this series is Mr. Tuck to Mr. Arasanious January 10th, 2007.


The reason I am clarifying that is occasionally there is a "forwarded by Mr. Makkinga" dated March 30th, 2007, which initially suggests a different timing.


So I just want to make that clear, that what -- we are looking at the first piece of correspondence from Mr. Arasanious, which he has always sent by e‑mail, is actually September 9th, 2006, and the last response by Enbridge is January 10th, 2007, and there is no other documentation that relates to concerns expressed by Mr. Arasanious and no other responses from Enbridge or anyone else associated with Enbridge; for example, Dillon.


We have everything?  This is the complete package?


MR. MAKKINGA:  Yes, that's correct.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  And there have been no phone calls or anything else concerning this?


MR. MAKKINGA:  Not to my knowledge.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  I want to make sure, because he raises certain concerns.  I would like to know that I have seen everything that Enbridge has responded back.


Mr. McDermott?


MR. McDERMOTT:  Prior to one of these e‑mails, there was a phone call between myself, Mr. Arasanious and Trevor Tuck.  We spoke at length, and then we crafted a response, one of these responses.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right.  Can you just give me an idea of the time that that occurred so I can place what response fits in there, because there are a series of backs and forths on this and I am just trying to get a time line.


MR. McDERMOTT:  At the moment, to the best of my knowledge, without having my notebook here to substantiate it, it is around the ‑‑ towards the end of December.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  You make reference to a notebook.  If you could just, through Mr. Stoll -- Mr. Stoll, if you could just confirm the timing of that.  That's all I would like to do.  I would just like to know that everything concerning Mr. Arasanious has been provided to us so we have a full ‑‑ a full understanding of all of the communication that has occurred.


So if we could just make that undertaking K.2, which is to confirm Mr. McDermott's recollection that a telephone call took place with Mr. Arasanious and Mr. Tuck and Mr. McDermott sometime around the end of December 2006.


MR. McDERMOTT:  Yes.

UNDERTAKING NO. K.2:  TO CONFIRM A TELEPHONE CALL BETWEEN MR. ARASANIOUS, MR. TUCK AND MR. MCDERMOTT AROUND THE END OF DECEMBER 2006.

MR. STOLL:  Yes.  I believe he had said that he had this call with Mr. Arasanious, then he had a follow-up meeting with Mr. Tuck.


I think the undertaking was being written, it implied that it was ‑‑ that it was a three-person call.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That is what I had understood.  Was I incorrect, Mr. McDermott?  There were only two people on the telephone conversation or three?


MR. McDERMOTT:  There were three.


MS. CAMPBELL:  There were three.  All right.  So I simply want you to confirm your recollection that a telephone conversation took place with yourself, Mr. Arasanious and Mr. Tuck from Enbridge sometime around the end of December 2006.


MR. McDERMOTT:  Okay.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And my recollection of your evidence was that you said, as a result of that telephone call, a letter was crafted, a written response was crafted?


MR. McDERMOTT:  Correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And that written response has been provided to us?


MR. McDERMOTT:  It is one of the responses with Trevor's – “Trevor Tuck, PEng” at the bottom.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Because of the dates of everything in the package, when I look, I assume what you are referring to is a letter dated January 10th, 2007?  That seems to fit in the time frame.


MR. McDERMOTT:  Correct.  That would be the December 27th.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I don't see a December 27th.  Perhaps I skipped ahead.


MR. McDERMOTT:  It's at attachment 1, page 3 of 10.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Attachment 1, page 3?  Yes, all right.  Thank you very much.


Question 7(b) and 7(c), I am going to ‑‑ because you have answered them together, I am going to put them on the record together, and then we can discuss them.


7(b) is:

"How will EGDI address and implement the concerns and recommendations received in the OPCC review?"


7(c) is:

"How will EGDI address and implement any concerns and recommendations received from the agencies and the public?"


Who is going to take this one?  Thank you. 

MR. MAKKINGA:  Enbridge Gas Distribution policy is to respond to all comments received and provide an explanation of the company's position on specific plans for the items in question.


Enbridge Gas Distribution also provides information regarding how to participate in the Ontario Energy Board process to review the application.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Just to clarify, on page 4 of 5 in answer to question number 7, in response to 7B and C, you have listed five different organizations or contacts have raised concerns that you feel fall under either the concerns or recommendations received in the OPCC review, and that indicate how you are going to address and implement those concerns and recommendations.  


MR. MAKKINGA:  Correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  What we have listed is Mr. Arasanious, we have the technical Standards and Safety Authority; we have the Ministry of Culture, specifically an archaeologist at the Ministry of Culture; we have the city of Toronto, specifically the director of survey and mapping; and we have two politicians and the co-chair of the Toronto Energy Coalition.  And that is the sum total?  


MR. MAKKINGA:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  You also filed the stage 2 archaeological study for the north section?  


MR. MAKKINGA:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That was just filed this morning?  


MR. MAKKINGA:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Since I haven't had a chance to review it, can you give me a summary of what the recommendation is in that report?  Let's put it this way.  What does the report say that you should be doing from an archaeological point of view, shall we say, when construction of this reinforcement project, if it is approved, begins?  


MR. MURACA:  As a member of Dillon, I have requested that an archaeologist complete a stage 2 of the preferred pipeline route.  That stage 2 was completed and no archaeological sites were discovered.


As a result of that study and as a part of our mitigation plan, we recommend that if any artefacts are discovered during the process of construction that the Ministry of Culture be notified, and that all construction cease until they can determine what artefacts are discovered and how to best deal with them.


MS. CAMPBELL:  My question relates to attachment 4, page 1, in answer to question 7.  That has to do with the city of Toronto.


First of all, on page 5 of 5, in response to question 7, you indicate that the concerns raised by the city surveyor for the city of Toronto in his letter of January 30th are addressed in the Aird & Berlis letter to the Board on February 19th.  A small matter:  The letter that I have as attachment five at page 1 is dated February 20th, not February 19th.  Am I to assume that the date is wrong, or do I have the wrong letter?  


MR. STOLL:  Sorry, can you give the page reference again?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Sure.  Question 7, attachment 4 and attachment 5.  Attachment 4 is the letter from the city of Toronto, dated January 30th, and the answer by Aird & Berlis is attachment 5, page 1 of 14, and it is dated February 20th.


In the table it says that the Aird & Berlis letter responding to the issues raised in the January 30th letter of the city of Toronto is dated February 19th, 2007, and the letter I have is dated February 20th.  


MR. STOLL:  The 19th is a typo.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  It's a typo? 


MR. STOLL:  Yes.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  It should say February 20th?


MR. STOLL:  That's correct.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  So I have the right letter?  


MR. STOLL:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


Now, on my reading of what Mr. Kowalenko wants, these all appear to be things that can be satisfied at the beginning of the construction; at least that is what I see.  They're asking that the following requirement be imposed in the event that the application is approved.  That has to do with the filing of drawings certified by an Ontario land surveyor or a record drawing as identified by the Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario.  That is something that would be accomplished in the very early stages of the construction?


I assume that when I look through, it appears that your response in February 20th is -- you don't appear to be taking any issue with filing the materials, but you do ask that the Board direct the city to file any comment it may wish to make prior to the technical conference.


Have there been any comments filed?  


MR. STOLL:  We have not received any comments, other than this letter from the city.  There has been no correspondence or dialogue with the city other than the letter we received and our response to the Board.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I'm correct though, when I look at it, that it is simply asking for filing of documents, is it not?  The city?  Because here is my issue.  Let me just explain it to you.


I can't say this is an area that I do a lot of.  I don't dig my own pipelines.  I don't do anything like that.  I leave it to the experts.  And as a result I don't have the knowledge that I am sure you gentlemen have.


So I look at this and my understanding when I look at it is, the city would like to see certain drawings, either drawings or record drawing filed, and they say within 30 days of the completion of construction, and you ask, in your letter of February 20th, for the city to file any comment it may wish.


I am not certain how I link the request for filing of documents with a request for filing of comments at the technical conference.  How do the two relate to one another?  


MR. STOLL:  Because in the opening comments they ask for observer status, they ask for an opportunity to make oral presentation to the Energy Board.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes. 


MR. STOLL:  Then they -- I impose the following requirement.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right.  


MR. STOLL:  Enbridge has a standard practice in dealing with the city regarding new main proposals.  To the extent that this was going to be over and above what is normal practice, I think it requires an additional dialogue.  Also, some of the other comments in the letter link with other projects and other incidents, and it is unclear that there is an evidentiary link or that it should be an issue of concern in this hearing.


So without further detail on what the city of Toronto actually was requesting, we needed more detail, and there has been no response from them.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Is it the position of Enbridge that because there has been no detail provided by the city of Toronto, you will not be providing the drawings that are requested in part 3 of their letter of January 30th?  


MR. STOLL:  To the extent that the request falls out of the normal operating of Enbridge and the City regarding new main constructions, it is not our intention to file any additional information right now.


Typically, the land surveys by a legal surveyor are not prepared prior to a construction job, and on a lot of main jobs you will never see an OLS certified drawing.  So to the extent that they want to make that a blanket account requirement, that is a much bigger discussion than we are here for at this hearing.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Well, maybe you could help me by explaining what the norm is, because what you referred to ‑‑ and we don't need to spend -- I don't need a tremendous amount of detail on this, but when I read this, I did not appreciate that this is somehow different than that which is usually done.   


So could you explain to me what the norm is and why this is so different from what normally is done, and why, as a result, it causes some concern on the part of Enbridge?


MR. STOLL:  Okay.  I will leave that for one of the engineers to take over, Mr. Naczynski or Mr. McDermott.


MR. NACZYNSKI:  I think I can shed some light on that.  Certainly I am not an expert with the permitting process and how that goes within our drafting department, but what I can tell you is that prior to pipeline construction, Enbridge circulates drawings to the public utility coordinating committees.  These agencies have an opportunity to look at the drawings.


Once construction is completed, any deviations to that for various reasons, obstacles in the road that had to be ‑‑ that required a slight pipeline alignment change, would be reflected on the drawings.  And then those drawings, these red-lined drawings would then be given to the city for update with their records so that other utilities know where the new gas main would be.


That would be the normal practice.  We would not have it surveyed by a land surveyor during construction under normal circumstances.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  Has there been any discussion with the city of Toronto around the fact that obviously the city of Toronto views this as not your average everyday project?  You will have to admit it is a big one.


MR. NACZYNSKI:  We have been in discussions with the city of Toronto on an ongoing basis working with them both in the field for field surveys, specifically in the south portion, for sure, and certainly been in discussion with the utility cut superintendent and with other utilities to work with them on the pipeline alignment.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So there is an ongoing discussion with the city of Toronto?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So this letter is simply the last written document, but there have been discussions ongoing in between?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  There's been some on going discussions and several meetings, as well, with certain individuals from the city of Toronto.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Including Mr. Kowalenko?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  I have not had any discussions with this particular gentleman, no.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Anybody from his department?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  No, I have not.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  So your discussions with the city of Toronto have been with who?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  The discussions I have had have been with a gentleman named of Joe Maderios, who is the utility cuts superintendent.  Ultimately, he is the one responsible for district one, where the 20-inch section of this project will be constructed.  


He is responsible for the sign‑offs on all permits for open cut of the roads, and I have been working with him to find a suitable location for the pipeline within the city streets.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So right now what is happening is you are having discussions with certain parts of the city of Toronto, but not specifically with the surveying and mapping services, which is where this request emanates from; right? 


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.  When the drawings are ready to go to permit, they will be circulated to the city of Toronto as a part of the normal review process for any Enbridge project, and these will be circulated to the city.


Then I am not too sure where the city ‑‑ how they distribute them within the city of Toronto.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So if I look at paragraph 3, do you have Mr. -- oh, I'm so bad with names.  Mr. Kowalenko, do you have his letter of January 30th, 2007?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  I do.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Good.  If you look at point number 3, and you will see in bold face that there is a request that the city is making.  They're asking the Board impose the following requirement, and the requirement is as discussed earlier, which is the filing of drawings certified by a surveyor or record drawing by an engineer.


Can you give me an idea of what the cost of doing that would be, the cost of fulfilling that request?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  Offhand?  I wouldn't know offhand.  I hate to give a number if it is not going to be accurate.  I would have to get back to you.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Can I get an undertaking, please?  I would like to know the cost of fulfilling that particular request.


MR. STOLL:  Very well.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Mr. Stoll?


MR. STOLL:  We will provide the information.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  And that would be K.3, and that is to provide the cost of providing either drawings certified by a surveyor or a record drawing, as defined by the Association of Professional Engineers, accurately showing the location of the constructed pipeline.  


And the further details, in case I have given an inaccurate summary, the details are contained in Mr. Kowalenko's letter of January 30th, 2007, which is found as attachment 4 to question number 7 in the answers provided and marked as Exhibit J.1 at this Technical Conference.

UNDERTAKING NO. K.3:  PROVIDE COST OF PROVIDING EITHER DRAWINGS CERTIFIED BY A SURVEYOR OR A RECORD DRAWING, AS DEFINED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, ACCURATELY SHOWING THE LOCATION OF THE CONSTRUCTED PIPELINE.  

MS. CAMPBELL:  The other question I have concerning this, in addition to the cost, is:  Would it in any way delay the construction project; do you know?  Providing those drawings, does that ‑‑ it says within 30 days of the completion of construction.  So I am assuming this would have no impact on the time line?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  These drawing such as this, I wouldn't anticipate a significant delay.  It would mean having a surveyor on site during the construction of the pipeline to verify, while the trench is open, where the works are, and I would have to get a more detailed estimate with respect to costs and timing for that.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right.  So the real question of cost includes the cost of the surveyor or the engineer, whatever it is.  Am I correct?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That would be correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So when I ask about costs ‑‑ this is where my lack of an engineering background comes in.  When I ask you to provide me with information concerning costs, it is everything that it takes to get the drawing completed or to have the ‑‑ sorry, to provide the drawing certified by a land surveyor or a record drawing provided by an engineer.  


So it is all of the costs that are involved with that, so that the Board can understand the financial significance of the request that is made by the city, and I think you have advised me that you don't think it would have any ‑‑ it doesn't have any impact on the time line of construction and fulfilling that request at the bottom end, it's not difficult, because it is something that would have had to occur throughout the process, because you have to have someone present throughout the process to record?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.  Normally, during the installation process, there would be pipeline inspectors on site and they would be taking measurements to various structures to accurately locate the pipe.  Certainly the city's request goes one step beyond that and actually having those ‑‑ these red-line drawings actually certified by either a PEng, or a land surveyor in this case.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you very much.


Just closing off on that.  If, following this, you are contacted by the survey and mapping services of the city of Toronto, would you please let me know, keep us posted on any communications that you might have with regard to either phone calls or letters or some other thing, given any other contract – contact, for the simple reason that with the hearing approaching, it may well be that this heats up somewhat and the city, at least the surveying and planning services of the city may contact you.


So I would appreciate being kept apprised of any contact and any dialogue you might have with them on that issue.


MR. STOLL:  That's fine.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


Now, I think we are ready to move on to question number 8.  I would just like to put on the record right now, as indicated previously, these materials were provided at the outset of the technical conference, and I am attempting to review them and ask any questions that I have right now.


Obviously I am assuming that if I have any questions after I exit that arise from these materials and I don't get them out, I can put them on paper and send them to you, Mr. Stoll?  


MR. STOLL:  That's fine.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  I hope not to.  But should that happen, I would like to know that there will be a response forthcoming.  Thank you.  


MR. STOLL:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Moving on to question 8.  Question 8 is based upon the same reports that we have just been discussing, which are the north end EA, done by Dillon Consulting, dated November 2006, and the south section EA, done by STANTEC and dated December 2006.


What we had asked was that Enbridge provide a summary of the input received in the process of public consultation - for example, public open houses - and explain how the input was applied to select the preferred route and to adjust the preferred route.


We asked for specific examples.  We note that in response to that, we have five pages and there is a narrative response and then there is a table.


I don't propose to have anyone from the current witness panel read in the table, but I would appreciate a summary of the answer that you have provided.  Mr. Wesenger.


MR. WESENGER:  Yes, certainly I can speak to issues regarding the south section.  For the south section of the Toronto Portland system reinforcement project, input received from the public consultation component of the project has been summarized in appendix B1, B6, B8, and B10 of the environmental assessment report.


Those were appended as attachment 1.  Specifics regarding how public input was applied to select and adjust the preferred route was explained in section 5.5 of the environmental assessment report for the south section.


 MS. CAMPBELL:  Sorry, I apologize, please finish.


MR. WESENGER:  With specific concern or regard to how issues that were raised were addressed, for the south section, there were two areas.  Specifically, we rerouted the preliminary preferred route around a baseball diamond, shifting from the west side to the east side of that diamond.


The second issue that was addressed or changed to the preferred route based on public consultation was, again, switching from the preliminary preferred route went down the west side of Hydro One's base injunction, and we rerouted that to the east side to address concerns.


MS. CAMPBELL:  If I look at the answers that have been provided to us this morning, the south section, which is STANTEC, if I look at it, question 8, attachment number 1, it starts off -- at page 2 of 24 is all of the STANTEC summary of stakeholder communication and the response that was done.  And STANTEC ends at page 9 of 24.  


MR. WESENGER:  STANTEC ends at page 24 of 24 of attachment 1.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, it does, all right. 


MR. WESENGER:  And attachment 2, which is two pages, is also provided from STANTEC.  It pertains to the south section.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, I see.  So everything that relates to the south section is page 2 of 24. 


MR. WESENGER:  Specifically with regard to attachment 1, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Does this contain updates?  Does it contain anything in here that was not in the prefiled evidence; in other words, that has come into STANTEC's possession or has been a dialogue that you have had with a stakeholder after the filing of the prefiled evidence?  


MR. WESENGER:  No, it does not.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I take it, from the answer to that question, that no stakeholder has come forward with any additional concerns since the filing of the prefiled evidence?  


MR. WESENGER:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  With regard to the north end, the north end is the first table?  


MR. MURACA:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  You have provided a response to the question for a summary of the input from the public consultation process.  You have provided an answer for the north section.


Could you please put that on the record.  Could you read it, please? 


MR. MURACA:  Absolutely, sure.  As indicated a public meeting was held for the update study on September 7, 2006.  All interested stakeholders were invited to review the project information, the preferred route and offer any comments on our prepared mitigation plan.


A meeting was also held to remind stakeholders of the previous project that was completed in 2004.  To fully gain and ascertain their comments, all participants were asked to fill out a questionnaire, and that reviewed their overview of the panels and to speak to project representatives.  There is a review of the 18 participant forms and the table outlines the summary of those comments received from the public, and how we are prepared to respond to them and, if that required a change in the preferred route.  That is the table that you see starting on page 2 of 5.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I will ask you the same question that I asked the previous witness, which is, since the filing of your report on the north end and the date for the filing of prefiled evidence, has anything else occurred?  In other words, have stakeholders contacted you or sent in letters or e-mails after the filing of your report with the Board?  


MR. MURACA:  No, they have not.


MS. CAMPBELL:  It is 11 o'clock.  I was wondering if people might like to take a 15-minute break, specifically thinking of the reporter.  Time for a quick break and then we can come back and I am sure we will finish -- 


MR. STOLL:  Do you have more questions for this Panel, or are you going on to the additional questions?


MS. CAMPBELL:  We have question 9, which has to do with hydrology.  You know what; is that the last question for this Panel?


MR. STOLL:  Question 9 is.   


MS. CAMPBELL:  It is?  So why don't we ask that one quickly, the hydrology, and then I promise you will have a break.  I really do.  Fast fast.


Exhibit B, tab 2, schedule 4.  This has to do with the STANTEC Consulting's south section EA, the December 2006 report.


We are actually at page 6.3, section 6.15, and this has to do with hydrology and the heading is, "Surficial Water Courses."  And it indicates that:

"The final route cross is one water course.  The shipping channel has relatively low flow velocities as a result of the flat topography.  The shipping channel will be directionally drilled.  Therefore, there should be minimal to no effects on this water course or the aquatic habitat it contains."


Our question to you concerning this was:  How long will the directional drilling take before it is completed, and what is the timing of the operation -- the timing of this operation in the construction schedule?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  The horizontal directional drilling of the shipping channel is anticipated to take six weeks.  It is expected that the drilling will commence as soon as the necessary regulatory approvals, permits and easements are in place and will run concurrently with the other project construction activities.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Where does this fall in the construction schedule?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  It is anticipated that given the time frame, certainly six weeks is a reasonable amount of time.  We would like to start the horizontal directional drilling as soon as possible, and then that will run concurrently with the main line construction.


So as soon as I am able, as soon as we have the necessary permits, et cetera, in place, we would like to commence the directional drilling activities.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So assuming that the Board approves this application, what you are saying is that construction would take place as quickly as possible?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Specifically the directional drilling of the shipping channel?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That would be correct, yes.  Certainly the ultimate decision would be left to the constructor to fit that within their construction time frame and their construction schedules, but it is anticipated that will run concurrently, as soon as possible.


MR. STOLL:  Just as a point of clarification, there will be more permits required other than the leave from the Board.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I appreciate that.  


MR. STOLL:  So any time restrictions within those permits would have to be complied with.  So if there is a limitation or a window --


MS. CAMPBELL:  I may have some more questions concerning that, but it is going to be from a permit point of view.  So perhaps we will deal with that with the next panel that comes up on permits, because I think the real issue here ‑‑ my understanding and my perception of this is that this is a fairly major undertaking, is it not, directional drilling?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  Depending on ‑‑ certainly -- it is certainly a routine operation for pipeline construction installation.  And drill lengths that we're proposing here are not -- are not overly ‑‑ it's not overly ‑‑ I wouldn't say it is overly complicated for this drill shot.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Well, my experience here is limited.  I am just saying that there haven't been that many leave to constructs that come through that require this, that's all.  Perhaps I am wrong.


In an urban setting, it is not that common, so I am just curious.  You're in the city of Toronto and you are going to be doing directional drilling of a shipping channel.


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  It is just not that common, so I have questions concerning it, because it takes a significant period of time and it is unusual to have happen in the city of Toronto, and so we are interested in the time that it will take.  I believe that the EA has outlined some of the things that will be undertaken to minimize the impact, but that said and done, it is still a significant component of this application.


So understanding how long it is going to take and the impact it is going to have on the urban environment is rather important.


All right, so there we are.  Let's take a break right now.  May I suggest that we come back at about 11:25 a.m.?


‑‑‑ Recess taken at 11:07 a.m. 

--- Upon resuming at 11:29 a.m.


MS. CAMPBELL:  We are back from our break and ready to deal with the last two questions.  I wish to make it clear, once again, we are going from question 9 to question 11 simply because there is no question 10.


 Question 11 refers to Exhibit D, tab 1, schedule 2 of the prefiled evidence, and we had asked a question concerning that that required information concerning the anticipated timeline to acquire the permits and any update to the prefiled evidence that was relevant to the permits that were required.  In the package that was filed as J.1, there is a table listing the authority, the purpose of the permit, and the anticipated timeline.  


 Who is it that will be speaking to this, Mr. Stoll? 


MR. STOLL:  We have a new member.


MS. CAMPBELL:  We have a new member. 


MR. STOLL:  If he could introduce himself.  


MR. TKACH:  Good morning.  My name is Walter Tkach, and I'm a property agent in land services, Enbridge Gas.


I am responsible for the negotiations and completions of the land rights for the north and south sections of the project.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  You do both sections?  


MR. TKACH:  Yes, I could.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I take it then -- 


MR. TKACH:  With assistance of one of the project engineers.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Certainly.  Any of them or all of them?  


MR. TKACH:  One or both.


MS. CAMPBELL:  My question to you, first of all, is there was filed in the prefiled evidence at Exhibit D, tab 1, schedule 2, a two-page list of permits required, and there has also been a filing in response this morning to a request for updates and a timeline for each of these permits.


Can you tell me what, if any, additions have been made to the list of permits required?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  I would like to bring your attention to two additional permits that have been subsequently added.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes. 


MR. NACZYNSKI:  On page 2 of 2 in our response to question number 11, you will note Sun Canadian Pipelines and TransNorthern Pipelines are the last two on that table.  That pertains to the south section.  We have to cross two deactivated oil lines.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Two deactivated oil lines?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  How long ago?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  How long ago were they deactivated?  
MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  In conversations with the gentlemen listed here, my understanding was about five years ago they were deactivated.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Both of them?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.  However, deactivated does not mean abandoned.  So for all intents and purposes they're considered live lines.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  One of the questions that we had before we broke had to do with the hydrology and the direction of drilling, and there was a discussion of permits that would be required for that.  Mr. Stoll cautioned me it wasn't just the Board approval; there were other permits that had to be obtained.


When I look at this, the one that immediately jumps to mind is MNR requires notification of all drilled water crossings and they require work permits for other water crossings.  That’s one permit that would have to be required for the directional drilling of the shipping lane.


Are there any other permits that would apply to that?  Would that be the Canadian coast guard permit, top of page 2?


MR. NACZYNSKI:  Why don't I quickly go through these in order.  Certainly the Toronto Region Conservation Authority, there is a water course in that area, and so there will be a permit required there.  The Department of Fisheries and Oceans would require the notification, as indicated.  The Ministry of Natural Resources.  The Canadian Coast Guard.


That would be all for that.  


MR. TKACH:  If I might add, we're requiring an easement for the Toronto Port Authority for the crossing of the channel.


 MS. CAMPBELL:  Is that on here?  


MR. TKACH:  It is on as the affected landowners.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I see, all right.  So that is actually question 12.  It fits more readily under question 12 because that has to do with landowners.


So the timelines.  You have down anticipated timelines.  Are those the normal timelines that occur in a normal project, or are those the timelines that you believe will happen in this project?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  These are the timelines that we're anticipating with this project.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Are any of the timelines longer than the norm?  


MR. McDERMOTT:  I can speak to that.  I do not know.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Do you anticipate any difficulty in obtaining any of these permits?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  Not to our knowledge at this point.  Discussions are ongoing with the different agencies to negotiate this and work through the permitting process.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I assume that Enbridge keeping the Board advised if it ran into any difficulties with the obtaining of any of these permits?  


MR. NACZYNSKI:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


The next question is question 12, and this relates to Exhibit D, tab 1, schedule 3, page 1, paragraph 1, and schedule 4, pages 2 to 3.


What we're really looking for is an update on the status of the negotiations with the landowners concerning the easement agreements and the working area agreement.  So an update from the time that Exhibit D, tab 1, schedule 3, page 1 and attachments were filed, because the first paragraph says negotiations have commenced.  Where are we now?  


MR. TKACH:  If I may respond to that.  We are currently in various levels of negotiations with the affected landowners of record.  No landowner has objected to our easement proposal and temporary working rights, where these are required.


All parties are fully cooperating to reach a mutually acceptable result.  We are confident that we will have agreements in place to complete construction on schedule.  If O&M impasse in negotiations is encountered, we will explore all reasonable solutions alternatives.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Can you tell me how many landowners you are negotiating with right now?  


MR. TKACH:  Eight.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Are those private landowners in the sense of residential?  My recollection is there are only a handful of residential. 


MR. TKACH:  There are no residential that I am aware of.  They're all agencies.


MS. CAMPBELL:  My memory is that something impacts on a residential neighbourhood.  Perhaps I am recalling part of the report before the route was altered.  There is no residential?  


MR. TKACH:  Not to my understanding.  They are essentially various agencies; the Ministry of Transportation, Ontario, Ontario Realty Corporation, Hydro One, city of Toronto, Toronto Economic Development Corporation, Ontario OPG, Toronto Port Authority.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Those are both temporary and permanent? 


MR. TKACH:  They include both temporary and permanent easements.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Do you have any sense as to whether or not negotiations will be completed before the panel starts the hearing on this matter on April 19th?  


MR. TKACH:  Sorry, could you repeat the question?


MS. CAMPBELL:  16th, I'm sorry.  The hearing starts on April 16th.  I'm just wondering if there is a possibility that some the negotiations will be completed by then or not?  


MR. TKACH:  We would be hopeful that some of the negotiations will be completed, but I think that negotiations will still be ongoing.  Preferably it will be completed before construction begins.


MS. CAMPBELL:  With regard to the shipping channel, which owner is affected by that?  


MR. TKACH:  Toronto Port Authority.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That is the only owner?  


MR. TKACH:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  You are negotiating with them right now?  


MR. TKACH:  That's right.


MS. CAMPBELL:  The Toronto Port Authority would be the one who would grant both the temporary and permanent easement to the shipping channel?  


MR. TKACH:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Before the hearing starts on April 16th, if there is a successful resolution of negotiations with any of the entities that you are negotiating with, I would appreciate it if you would notify the Board, so that we are up to date.  I am sure you can anticipate that would be an issue that would be of some interest to the panel.  Being kept up to date would be very much appreciated.


I have no other questions for the rest of this conference.  Since I seem to be the only one asking questions, I take it we are just about finished, unless someone else who would like to come forward and ask some questions, too.


This is of course subject to any undertakings that were given, and Mr. Stoll and I will have a brief conversation concerning paragraph (g) that we talked about, the defaults and the implementation of guarantees.


Thank you very much, panel.  Thank you to everybody who participated.  That is the end of the technical conference.


--- Technical Conference concludes at 11:40 a.m. 
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